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+ IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
FORT WORTH DIVISION" '

Bobby Peatson, Frank Spacek, Stefan
Marunde, Ky Teumboun, Brennan
Andrades, Stephan Whitson, Michael
Govantes, Tti Nguyen, Paul Kincade,
Ctaig Richards, Tyrone Jenkins, Matk
Hatris, Michael Woolsey, James Beetler,
Stephen Gutierre, Dawn Juarez, Lenard
Martin, Chris Pete and Sam McGee,
individually and on behalf of all those
similarly situated

Plaintiffs,

V.

Trinity Armored Security, Inc. and
Kenneth A. West

Defendants

L2 L) (2 22 L2 L) () L2} 2 1) W22 (22) 22 (22 L) ) () ) )

Civil Action Number: 4-13cv-281-Y

Jury Demanded

PLAINTIFFS’ FIRST AMENDED ORIGINAT COMPLAINT

Bobby Pearson (“Peatson”), Frank Spacek (“Spacek”), Stefan Marunde (“Marunde”)

Ky Teumboun (“Teumboun”), Brennan Andrades (“Andrades”), Stephan Whitson

(“Whitson™), Michael Govantes (“Govantes™), Tri Nguyen (“Nguyen”), Paul Kincade

(“Kincade™), Craig Richards (“Richards”), Tyrone Jenkins (“Jenkins”), Matk Harris

(“Hatris”), Michael Woolsey (“Woolsey”), James Beetler (“Beetlet”), Stephen Gutietre

(“Gutierre”), Dawn Juarez ("‘ varez”) Lenard Martin (“Martin”), Sam McGee (“McGee)

and Chris Pete (“Pete”) (Peatson, Spacek, Maqunde, Teumbaun, Andrades, Whitson,

Govantes, Nguyen, Kincade, Richards, Jenkins, Harris, Woolsey, Beetler, Gutierte, Juatez,

Mattin, McGee and Pete individually referred to as a “Plaintiff” and collectively referred to
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as “Plaintiffs”) individually and'qn behalf of all others similarly situated (“Class

Membets”) file this First Amended Original Complaint and bring this Fair Labor

Standards Act (“FLSA”) suit against the above-named Defendants and show as fo]iows:
A. Nature of Suit.

1. The FLSA was passed by Congtess in 1938 in an attempt to eliminate low wages
and long houts and fo correct conditions that were dettimental to the health and
well-being of wotkers. To achieve its humanitarian goals, the FLSA requites the
payment of a2 minimum wage and “limits to 40 a week the number of hours thatan -
employet may employ any of his employees subject to the Act, unless the employee
receives.compensaﬁon for his employment in excess of 40 hours at a rate not less
than one and one-half times the regular rate at which he is employed.” Walling v.
Helmerich & Payne, 323 U.S. 37, 40 (1944) (discussing the requirements of 29
U.S.C. § 207 ().

2. This is the classic example of an employer intentionally violating the FLSA. -
Defendants paid absolutely no overtime to any of its employees regardless of job
classification ot duties. While the employet paid a “shift premium?” for work
petformed on Saturday, the time and a half premium was not connected to whether
the employee had wotked 40 hours previously. It was simply paid because it was
work performed on a Saturday.

3. This lawsuit seeks recovery of the unpaid overtime for the numerous employees
employed by Defendants. Although the total number of employees of Defendants

is not numerous (approximately 50-60) compared to some other collective actions,
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Plaintiffs seek the Court’s assistance in creating approptiate subclasses of
employees to propetly and efficiently calculate the overtime wages due to the:
Plaintiffs and Class Mc;,rnbers.

B. Parties.

4. Each Plaintiff is an individual residing in the Northern District of Texas. In the
three-yeat period preceding the filing of this action, Plaintiffs were employed by -
Defendants within the meaning of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201
et. seq. At all times hereinafter mentioned, each Plaintiff was an individual
employee who was engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for
commetce as required by 29 U.S.C. §§ 206-207. The W;itten consent to become a
patty plaintiff for each Plaintiff is on file with the Court. | |

5. The putative Class Membets are individuals that were employed by Defendants in
the three-year petiod preceding the filing of this action and were not paid overtime
in compliance with the FLSA. At all times hereinafter mentioned, the Class
Members were individual employees who were engaged in commerce or in the
production of goods for commerce as required by 29 U.S.C. §§ 206-207.

6. Defendant Ttrinity Atmored Security, Inc. (“Defendant Trinity”) is a Texas
cotporation engaged in commetce or the production of goods for commetce:
within the meaning of the FLSA and 1s obligated to ensﬁre that all employees ate
paid in accordance with the FLSA. Defendant Trinity’s office address is 4221 Clay

Avenue, Haltom City, TX 76117. Defendant Trinity may be served by serving its
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10.

11.

12.

registered agent Kenneth A. West at 4221 Clay Avenue, Haltom City, TX 76117, ot
whetevet its registered agent may be found. -
Defendant Kenneth A. West (“Defendant West”) is an individual and a Texas
resident residing in the Notthern District of Texas. Defendant West can be served
at 4221 Clay Avenue, Haltom City, TX 76117 or whetever he can be found.

| C. ]uﬁsdiction aﬁd~Venue. |
Venue of this action is proper in this disttict and division because the majority of
the events giving rise to the cause of action alleged herein occurred in this division
and judicial district. Venue exists in the judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1391. |
Defendants catty on substantial business in the Northern District of Texas and
have sufficient minimum contacts with this state to be subject to this Court’s -
jurisdiction.
This Coutt has jurisdiction over this case pursuant to the District Coutt’s

federal question jurisdiction as set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 1331. Specifically, this case

" is brought pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 201 ¢f seq., as amended.

D. Coverage.
At all material times, Defendants have acted, ditectly or indirectly, in the interest of
an employer with respect to Plaintiffs and the Class Members.
At all times hereinafter mentioned, Defendants have been an employer within the

meaning of the Section 3(d) of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(d).
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- 13.

14.

15.

At all times hereinafter mentioned, Defendants have been an enterprise within the .

- meaning of Section 3(t) of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(z).

At all times hereinafter mentioned, Defendants have been an enterprise engaged in -
commetce ifi the production of goods for commerce within the meaning of

Section 3(s)(1) of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(s)(1), in that said enterprise has -
had employees engaging in commetce or in the production of goods for
commetce, ot employees handling, selling, or otherwise working on goods ot

matetials that have been moved in or produced for commerce for any person and

in that said enterprise has had and has an annual gross volume of sales made ot

business done of not less than $500,000 (exclusive of excise taxes at the retail level
which are separately stated).

Defendént West had and has authotity to set corporate policy, participate in
decisions regarding the classification of employees and the payment of overtime as

well as participate in decisions regarding whether or not to pay Plaintiffs overtime.

- In addition, Defendant West had and has operational control of significant aspects.

16.

of the Defendant Ttinity’s day-to-day functions and independently exercised

control over the wotk situation. He had and has direct involvement in the day-to- .
day operation of Defendant Trinity and had and has some direct responsibility for.
the sﬁpervision of the employees.

Defendant West acts, and has acted, directly ot indirectly, in the interests of an

employet in relation to Plaintiffs and the Class Members.
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17. At all times hereinafter mentioned, Plaintiffs were individual employees who were .
engaged in commetce or in the production of goods for commerce as required by
29 U.S.C. §§ 206-207. |

18. Plaintiffs were employed by Defendants within the applicable statute of limitations.

E. Factual Allegations Common to all Plaintiffs.
19. Defendant Trinity provides perspna]ized armored car, A’IM; coin sorting and
- wrapping, and other related services to financial institutions, retail businesses,
educational entities and municipalities. It also provides services for events with
special scheduling needs such as sports activities and festivals. According to its
~website Defendant Ttinity provides these services throughout the North Central
Texas region.
20. Plaintiffs ate paid on an houtly basis. If they wotk more than 40 hours per
- wotkweek they are normally paid only “straight time’. > for all hours worked over
40; Plaintiffs are not paid time and one half.

21. Defendant West is the owner of Defendant Trinity and has complete say and
control over Defendant Trinity’s operations and compensation policies and
practices.

22. Deféndant Trinity has four locations in the North Central Texas region; Dallas,
‘Plano, Haltom City and Wichita Falls, Texas (each a “Location” and collectively
the “Locaﬁoné”). The Dallas, Plano and Wichita Falls Locations have no vehicles

~weighing over 10,000 pounds. The Haltom City Location has eleven vehicles

Plaintiffs’ First Amended Original Complaint
Page | 6



Case 4:13-cv-00281-Y Document 17 Filed 05/07/13 Page 7 of 23 PagelD 92

23,

weighing less than 10,000 pounds and seven vehicles weighing more than 10,000 -

pounds.

None of the Plaintiffs or employees of Defendants operate vehicles that are (1)

designed or used to transport more than 8 passengers (including the driver) for

- compensation; (i) designed or used to transport more than 15 passengers

24.

25.

26.

(including the drivet) and not used to transport passengers for compensation; ot
i11) used in transporting hazardous matetial, requirin laca:fdin under regulations
P ) quiting p ) 8

ptesctibed by the Sectetary of Transportation.

F. Factual Allegations for Operations Manager
Pearson works for Defendants at their Haltom City facility as an “Operations
Manager.” Pearson is tesponsible for scheduling the services required by
customers and the routes dtiven by Defendants’ drivers. Additionally, Pearson
oversees the maintenance of the fleet of trucks driven by employees of
Defendants.
During the time petiod, Pearson’s job responsibilities consisted of providing
scheduling and in-take services to clients of Defendants.
Pearson’s primary ] ob duties consisted of conduct that does not require discretion
in otder to be petformed. or advanced training. Pearson’s duties are routine and
do not requite the exetcise of independent judgment or discretion. Although

Pearson is labeled as a “Managet™ his primary duty is not the management of the
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27.

28.

29.

30.

~entetprise or of a customarily recognized depattment ot subdivision; to the

contrary, he has no responsibility for:

" a.

b.

h.

i

Interviewing, selecting, and training employees;
Setting and adjusting pay and work hours;
Maintaining production or sales records;

Hiring or firing employees;

- Appraising employee productivity and efficiency;

Handling employee complaints and grievances;
Disciplining employees;

Planning and controlling the budget; or

- Monitoting ot implementing legai compliance measures

Pearson and similatly situated Operations Managers regulatly worked in excess of -

40 houts a week.

Defendants did not pay Peatson, and similarly situated employees, time-and-one-

half their regular rate of pay for the houts that Pearson and similarly situated

employees wotked over 40 hours a week.

Pearson, and other similatly situated employees, were “on-call” during many of the

wortkweeks and not paid at the overtime rate for the time spent on-call. -

Defendants knowingly, willfully; and/ ot with reckless disregard carried out its

illegal pattetn and/or practice of failing to pay overtime compensation with respect

to Pearson and similatly situated employees.
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31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

The FLSA requites employers to keep accurate time records of hours worked by

nonexempt employees. 29 U.S.C. § 211 (¢).

In addition to the pay violations of the FLSA identified above, Defendants also
failed to keep propet time records as required by the FLSA.
Peatson has retained the Law Office of Chris R. Miltenberger, PLLC to represent

him in this litigation and has agreed to pay a reasonable fee for its setvices.

G. Factual Allegations for Vault Employees.

Spacek, Kincade, Govantes, Martin and Juarez (each a “Vault Employee” and

‘collectively the “Vault Employees”) work or worked for Defendants as “vault”

employees. Their duties consist of accounting for the money in the vault, checking
the money out of the vault and checking the money into the vault.

The Vault Employees do not qualify for any of the “exemptions” to the FLSA.
Theit duties do not involve independent discretion.

The Vault Employees do not perform duties as a driver, driver’s helper, loader or
mechanic on any vehicles.

The Vault Employees are paid on an houtly basis but are not paid overtime by
Defendants.

The Vault Employees and similarly situated employees regulaﬂy work in excess of

40 hours a week.
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39. Defendants did not pay the Vault Employees and similarly situated employees, .

. time-and-one-half their regular rate of pay for the hours that the Vault Employees
and similatly situated employees worked over 40 hours a week.

40. Defendants knowingly, willfully, and/or with reckless disregard cartied out its
illegal pattern and/or: practice of failing to pay overtime compensation with respect
to the Vault Employees and similatly situated employees.

41. In addition to the pay violations of the FLSA identified above, Defendants also
failed to keep propet time records as required by the FLSA.

42. In addition to the pay violations of the FLSA identified above, Defendants also
failed to keep proper time records as required by the FLSA.

© 43, The Vault Employees have retained the Law Office of Chris R. Miltenbetger,
PLLC to represent them in this litigation and has agreed to pay a reasonable fee
. for its services.
H. Factual Allegations for Delivery Truck Drivers.

44, Marunde, Teumboun, Andrades, Whitson, Nguyen, Richards, Jenkins, Harris, .
Woolsey, Beetler, Gutierre, McGee and Pete (each a “Driver” and collectively the
“Drivets”) wotked ot wotk for Defendants as delivery truck drivers.

45. Drivers that ate assigned to “school routes” ate operating vehicles weighing 10,000
pounds or less (“School Route Drivers”). School Route Drivers do not operate
vehicles weighing more than 10,000 pounds as defined by the gross vehicle weight
rating (“GVWR?”). Additionally, School Route Drivers are not qualified to and do

not drive armored truck routes ot vehicles weighing more than 10,000 pounds.
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46. Drivers that are assigned to “armoted truck™ routes are operating vehicles
g P g

- 47.

48.

49.

weighing greatet than 10,000 pounds (“Armored Truck Route Drivers”).
Armored Truck Route Drivers will occasionally dtive a school route and in effect
become a School Route Driver for that day or petiod of time. When an Armored
Truck Route Drivers dtive a school route they are operating trucks that weigh
under 10,000 pounds.

Regardless of the type of vehicle operated by the Drivers, Defendants do not pay
at the overtime rate for hours greater than 40 during a workweek. Defendants
appatently tely on the ovettime pay exemption of 13(b)(1) of the FLSA commonly
known as the “motor carrier exempﬁoﬁ.” Defendants’ reliance, howevet, is .
ﬁ:isplaced. :

Duting the wotkweeks during which the Drivers “in whole or in part” perform

‘work “affecting the safety of small vehicles” (non-commercial vehicle weighing

10,000 pounds ot less), the overtime pay exemption of section 13(b)(1) of the
FLSA does not apply to the Drivers. See, the U. S. Department of Labor Wage
and Hour Division, Field Assistance Bulletin No. 2010-2 attached hereto as
Exhibit “A.”
The Field Assistance Bulletin specifically provides in part as follows:

This memorandum clarifies the effect of the Safe, Accountable,

Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: a Legacy for Users

Technical Cotrections Act of 2008 (TCA), P.L. 110-244, on

section 13(b)(l) of the Fair Labot Standards Act (FLSA). Effective

June 6, 2008, the overtime pay exemption under section

13(b)(1) does not apply to a driver, driver's helper, loadet, ot
mechanic in any wortkweek in which their work affects the

Plaintiffs’ First Amended Original Complaint
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safe, interstate operation of certain motor vehicles weighing
10,000 pounds ot less (hereinafter teferred to as "small vehicles").

TCA section 306(a) extends FLSA section 7 overtime
requirements to employees covered by TCA section 306(c),
notwithstanding FLSA section 13(b)(1). This means the
ovettime pay requirements apply to an employee of 2 motor
cattiet ot motor private catrier in any workweek in which the
employee wotks, "inn whole or in part', as a driver, driver's
helper, loader or mechanic affecting the safety of operation of
small vehicles on public highways in interstate or foreign
commetce. (emphasis added).
50. Thus, Drivers normally assigned to school routes during 2 workweek are entitled
“to overtime. Dtivers normally assigned to armored truck routes may be entitled to
overtime duting a patticular workweek depending on whether the Driver also
wotked “in whole ot in part” on non-commercial vehicles during that workweek
because such activity negates the exemption. -
51. The Drivers ate paid on an houtly basis but are not paid overtime by Defendants.
52. None of the Drivets have a commetcial driver license.
53. McGee, and other similatly situated employees, were “on-call” during many of the
wotkweeks and not paid at the overtime rate for the time spent on-call.
54. The Drivers and similatly situated employees regularly work in excess of 40 hours
a week.
55. Defendants did not pay the Drivers, and similarly situated employees, time-and-
one-half theit regular rate of pay for the hours that the Drivers and similatly

. situated employees worked over 40 hours a week.
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- 56.

57.

58.

Defendants knowingly, willfully, and/or with reckless disregard carried out its

illegal pattern and/ot practice of failing to pay overtime compensation with respect

.to the Drivers and similatly situated employees.

In addition to the pay violations of the FLSA identified above, Defendants also .
failed to keep proper time records as required by the FLSA. .

The Drivers have retained the Law Office of Chris R. Miltenberger, PLLC to

- reptesent them in this litigation and has agreed to pay a reasonable fee for its-

59.

60.

61.

setvices.

I. Collective Action Allegations.
It is the policy of Defendants not to pay overtime wages to its employees,
including Plaintiffs and putative Class Members, for any workweek in which they
(a) worked on both a vehicle with a GVWR of greater than 10,000 pounds and 2
vehicle with 2 GVWR of 10,000 pounds oz less; ot (b) worked egclusively on.a
vehicle with a GVWR of 10,000 pounds or less.
Defendants do not pay ovetrtime because Defendants have a policy of classifying
each employee as an exempt employee due to the Motor Carrier Act exemption.
Such policy applies to all employees of Defendants, regardless of job classification
or duties.
Thus, other employees have been victimized by this pattern, practice, and policy
which is in willful violation of the FLSA. Some of these employees have worked
with Plaintiffs and have reported that they wete paid in the same manner as

Plaintiffs, i.e., straight pay but no overtime pay for hours worked in excess of 40
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62.

63.

64.

65.

pet wotkweek. From discussions with these employees and discussions with
maﬁagement employees, Plaintiffs are aware that Defendants’ policy of classifying .
all employees as exempt employees has been uniformly imposed on the Class
Membets at each of the Locations.

The Class Members do not qualify for the Motor Catrier Act exemption and
petformed job duties typically associated with non-exempt employees. Their -
duties wete routine and did not require the exercise of independent judgment ot
discretion. Moteovet, these ¢mp10yees regularly worked more than 40 hours in a
workweek and wete not paid one-half their regular rate of pay for hours worked in
excess of 40 houts in a work week. |
Accotdingly, the employees victimized by Defendants’ unlawful pattern and
practices ate similatly situated to Plaintiffs in terms of job duties and pay
provisions.

Defendants’ failute to pay overtime compensation at the rates required by the
FLSA is based on Defendants’ genetally applicable policy of classifying each
employee as an exempt employee due to the Motor Carrier exemption and does
not depend on the personal citcumstances of the Class Members. Thus, Plaintiffs’
expetiences ate typical of the experience of the Class Members.

The specific job titles, precise job requirements or job locations of the various -
Class Members do not prevent collective treatment. All Class Members, regardless
of their work location, precise job requirements or rates of pay, are entitled to be

paid the minimum wage and/or overtime compensation for hours worked in
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66.

67.

excess of 40 houts pet week. Although the issue of damages may be individual in
character, there is no dettaction from the common nucleus of liability facts. The
questions of law and fact are common to Plaintiffs and the Class Members.

The same policies and practices of failing to pay the overtime compensation as
required by the FLSA are applied at each of the Locations which Defendants
operate and this léwsuit seeks recovety for similatly situated employees at each of-

those-Locations.

The class of similatly situated Plaintiffs is properly defined by four subclasses as

follows:

a. All Operations Managers who worked for Defendants at any of
Defendants’ Locations within the last three years who wotked in
excess of 40 hours in one or more workweeks and were not
compensated at one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for

- all hours wotked in excess of 40 houts in one or more workweeks;

b. All Vault Employees who worked for Defendants at any of
Defendants’ Locations within the last three years who worked in
excess of 40 houts in one or more workweeks and were not
compensated at one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for
all hours wotked in excess of 40 hours in one or more workweeks;
and

c. All School Route Drivers who worked for Defendants at any of
 Defendants’ Locations within the last three years who worked in
excess of 40 houts in one or more workweeks and were not
compensated at one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for
all hours wotked in excess of 40 hours in one or more workweeks.

d. All Atmored Truck Route Drivers who (1) worked for Defendants at
any of Defendants’ Locations within the last three years; (2) worked
in excess of 40 houts in one or more workweeks; (3) were not
compensated at one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for
all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in one or more workweeks;
and (4) operated vehicles weighing less than 10,001 pounds during
the workweek in which they worked more than 40 hours and wete
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68.

69.

not compensated at one and one-half times their regular rate of pay
for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours.

Plaintiffs bting this action on behalf of similatly situated employees employed at .
any of the Locations.

As a collective action, Plaintiffs seek this Coutt's appointment and\or designation

~ as representative of a group of similarly situated individuals as defined herein.

70.

J. Cause of Action: Failure to Pay Wages in Accordance
with the Fair Labor Standards Act.

Each and every allegation contained in the foregoing paragraphs is.re-alleged as if

- fully rewritten herein.

71.

72.

During the relevant.periovd, Defendants have violated and are violating the
provisions of Sections 6 and/or 7 of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §§ 206, 207, and
215(2)(2), bﬁr employing employees in an enferprise engaged in commerce orin the-
productioﬁ of goods for commetce within the meaning of the FLSA as aforesaid,
without compensating such employees for their work at the minimum wage and for
their work in excess of forty hours per week at rates no less than one-and-a-half
times the ‘regular rates for which they were employed.

Defendants knowingly, willfully, or with reckless disregard carried out their illegal
pattern or practice of failing to pay the minimum wage and/or overtime

compensation with respect to Pearson and the Class Members.
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73. Defendants did not act in good faith and/or have reasonable grounds for a belief .

that their actions did not violate the FLSA nor did they act in reliance upon any of .

the following in formulating their pay practices: (a) case law; (b) the FLSA, 29

U.S.C. § 201, et seq.; (c) Depattment of Labor Wage & Hour Opinion Lettets; or

- (d) the Code of Federal Regulations.

K. Jury Demand.

74. Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury herein.

L. Relief Sought.

75. WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, Plaintiffs pray that they and all

those who consent to be opt-in plaintiffs in this collective action recover jointly

and severally from Defendants, the following:

a.

An Otder recognizing this proceeding as a collective action pursuant to
Section 216(b) of the FLSA and appointing Plaintiffs and their counsel to
represent the Class Members;

An Otdet requiring Defendants to provide the names, addresses, email
addresses and telephone numbers of all potential Class Members;

An Otder approving the form and content of a notice to be sent to all
potential Class Members advising them of the pendency of this litigation
and of their rights with respect thereto;

Cornpensétion for all hours wotked at a rate not less than the applicable
minimum wage;

Overtime compensation fot all unpaid hours worked in excess of forty
hours in any wotrkweek at the rate of one-and-one-half times their regular

rates;

All unpaid wages and overtime compensation;
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g An award of liquidated and/or pusitive damages pursuant to 29 U.S.C §
216; ‘

h. Reasonable attorney’s fees, expett fees, costs, and expenses of this action as
provided by the FLSA;

i. Ptrejudgment and postjudgment interest at the highest rates allowed by

law; and

j- Such other relief as to which Plaintiffs may be entitled.

Dated this 7th day of May, 2013.
Respectfully submitted,

% ; y%%ll/ /

By: Chris R. Miltenberger

The Law Office of Chrtis R. Miltenberger, PLLC
Texas Bar Number: 14171200

430 N. Catroll, Suite 120

Southlake, Texas 76092

(817) 296-0422

(817) 446-5062 (fax)

chris@crmlawpractice.com

Attorney for Plaintiffs

CERTIFICATE OF CONFERENCE

This filing does not seek an order from, nor require any action by, the Court. Accordingly,

no certificate of conference is required. / /é\

Chfis R. Miltenberger
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on May 7, 2013, I electronically filed the foregomg document with the clerk of
the court for the U.S. Disttict Court, Notthern District of Texas, using the electronic case filing
system of the coutt. The electronic case filing system sent a “Notice of Electronic Flhng” to the
following attotneys of record, who have consented in writing to accept this “Notice” as setvice of

this document by electronic means:

John A. Hixson, Esq.

Texas Bar No. 09731200

2705 S. Cooper Street, Ste 300
Arlington, Texas 76015
817.261.8419 / 817.665.9184 (fax)

hixsonlaw(@msn.com

James J. Cusack, Esq.

Florida Bar No. 236853

One Tampa City Center

201 N. Franklin St., Ste. 2880
Tampa, Florida 33602
813.223.1276 / 813.226.0159 (fax)

ji_mcusack.tarnpa(@gr_naﬂ.com % E E' E E {

Chris R. Miltenberger
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U.S. Department of Labor
. Wage and Hour Division :
_, Washington, D.C. 20210

U.S. Wi an&HomDmsion

November 4, 2010
FIELD ASSISTAN CE BULLETIN No. 2010-2

MEMORANDUM FOR: REGIONAL ADMINISTRATORS AND DISTRICT DIRECTORS
LN %uxf
NANCY J. LEPP%

FROM:
Deputy Administrator

SUBJECT: Change in Application of the FLSA § 13(b)(1) “Motor Carrier
Exemption”

This memorandum clarifies the effect of the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation
Equity Act: a Legacy for Users Technical Corrections Act of 2008 (TCA), P.L. 110-244, on
section 13(b)(1) of the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). Effective June 6, 2008, the overtime pay
exemption under section 13(b)(1) does not apply to a driver, driver’s helper, loader, or mechanic in:
any workweek in which their work affects the safe, interstate operation of certain motor vehicles
weighing 10,000 pounds or less (hereinafter referred to as “small vehicles™). '

Section 306 of the TCA (attached) amends the change in the section 13(b)(1) exemption made by
the Safe Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: a Legacy for Users '
(SAFETEA-LU), P.L. 109-59 (see Field Assistance Bulletin 2007-2, May 23, 2007). This
memorandum describes the TCA modification and its effect on the “four-month” rule.”

TCA section 306(a) extends FLSA section 7 overtime requirements to employees covered by TCA
section 306(c), notwithstanding FLSA section 13(b)(1). This means the overtime pay requirements
apply to an employee of a motor carrier or motor private carrier in any workweek in which the
employee works, “in whole or.in part”, as a driver, driver’s helper, loader or mechanic affecting the
safety of operation of small vehicles on public highways in interstate or foreign commerce. This
exception, however, does not apply to vehicles that are: :

@) Designed or used to transport more than 8 passengers (including the
driver) for compensation;

* The “four-month” rule stems from the Department of Transportation’s Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration’s
interpretation of the Motor Carrier Act of 1935, conferring that agency jurisdiction over drivers and certain other
employees for a four-month period beginning with the date they could have been called upon to, or actually did, engage
in the carrier’s interstate activities; thus, triggering the overtime pay exemption for that period.
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(ii) De_signéd or used to transport more than 15 passengers (including the
driver) and not used to transport passengers for compensation; or

(ii)  Used in transporting hazardous material, requiring placarding under
regulations prescribed by the Secretary of Transportation.

Prior to TCA’s enactment, drivers, driver’s helpers, loaders or mechanics who performed safety-
affecting duties on commercial motor vehicles under SAFETEA-LU were exempt under § 13(b)(1)
for four months from the time they actually engaged in the carrier’s interstate activities, or from the
time they could have been called upon to engage in the carrier’s interstate activities. TCA overrides
the application of the “four-month” rule in any workweek an employee is covered by section

306(c). -

For example, employees who performed, or could have been called upon to perform, duties
affecting the safe operation of a motor vehicle in interstate commerce in-any workweek are exempt
from FLSA overtime requirements for the next four months, exeept for workweeks in that period
in which their duties, in whole or in part, affect the safe operation of a small vehicle in interstate-
commerce. The phrase “in whole or in part” included in the statute means an employee who
performs such duties involving small vehicles for the entire week or part of the week must receive
overtime pay for hours worked over 40 in that workweek. The changes made by TCA thus extend
FLSA overtime protection to some employees even when such employees are also subject to the
authority of the Secretary of Transportation to set maximum hours of service. Please see attached
chart for further clarification on how the TCA affects the application of the 13(b)(1) exemption.

For enforcement purposes, we will use the following standards:
o “Weighing 10,000 pounds” — WHD will continue to use the gross vehicle weight rating

(GVWR) or gross combined vehicle weight rating in the event that the vehicle is pulling a .-
trailer. The GVWR is found on the vehicle, usually on a plate on the door jamb. -

¢ ‘“Designed or used to transport more than 8” (or more than 15) — WHD will determine this
information based on the vehicle’s current design and the vehicle capacity as found on the
door jamb plate. Where a vehicle’s seating capacity has been reduced, for example by -

" removing seats to accommodate a wheelchair, we will count the resulting seating capacity
plus add 1 for each wheelchair placement. Where a vehicle’s capacity has been increased,
for example by bolting a bench seat into a cargo area, we will not count the added capac1ty
unless the vehicle has been recertified by DOT for that purpose.

Effective June 6, 2008 WHD enforcement staff must apply the new limited scope of the section
13(b)(1) exemption described above. Fact Sheet #19 incorporates the changes in the application of

section 13(b)(1) made by TCA.-

Attachment: Section 306, P.L. 110-244
TCA Chart
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DRIVER, DRIVER’S HELPER, LOADER OR MECHANIC WHOSE | TCA & FLSA § 13(b)(1)

WORK AFFECTS THE SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR ' EXEMPT OR

VEHICLES ON PUBLIC HIGHWAYS IN INTERSTATE OR NONEXEMPT STATUS

FOREIGN COMMERCE AND PERFORMS SUCH DUTIES ON THE |

FOLLOWING VEHICLES:

A. Exclusively on a motor vehicle that weighs (GVWR) 10,001 pounds or more. Exempt = 4-month rule
applies

B. Exclusively on a motor vehicle that is (regardless of weight)
1. designed or used to transport more than 8 passengers (including the
driver) for compensation; or
2. designed or used to transport more than 15 passengers (including the
driver) and not used to transport passengers for compensation; or
3. used in transporting hazardous material, requiring placarding under
- regulations prescribed by the Secretary of Transportation.

Exempt => 4-month rule
applies

Exempt = 4—m6n’th rule

C. On a motor vehicle that weighs 10,001 pounds or more, as well as on a motor
vehicle described in B above in the same workweek.

applies -

‘| D. Exclusively on a motor vehicle that weighs 10,000 pounds or less (except motor |

vehicles described in B above).

Nonexempt entirely

E. On a motor vehicle that weighs 10,001 pounds or more; however, in
some workweeks (whether the entire week or part of the week), also performs
safety affecting duties on a motor vehicle that we1ghs 10,000 pounds or less
(referred to as “small vehicle”).

Nonexempt in those
workweeks where work is

also performed on a vehicle
"| that weighs 10,000 pounds or

less (small vehicle); 4-month
rule may apply in other
workweeks

F. On a motor vehicle that is (regardless of we1ght} ’
1. designed or used to transport more than 8 passengers (mcludmg the
driver) for compensation; or
2. designed or used to transport more than 15 passengers (mcludmg the
driver) and not used to transport passengers for compensation; or
3. used in transporting hazardous material, requiring placarding under
regulations prescribed by the Secretary of Transportation.
However, in some workweeks (whether the entire week or part of the week),
also performs safety affecting duties on a motor vehicle that welghs 10,000

pounds or less (“small vehicle”

Nonexempt in those
workweeks where work is
also performed on a vehicle
that weighs 10,000 pounds or
less (small vehicle); 4-month
rule may apply in other

1 workweeks

For example:

An employer employs a pool of drivers, anyone of whom could be called upon to drive a
truck weighing 10,001 pounds or more to transport materials to a construction site in
another state. If a driver is called to drive the truck to the construction site, that driver
along with the other drivers who could have been called upon to drive are exempt from

overtime pay for the following four months, as described in A above.

However, if a driver in any workweek during the four months performs safety affecting
duties on a vehicle that weighs 10,000 pounds or less (“small vehicle”), that driver alone
is nonexempt for that workweek and must receive overtime pay for hours worked over

40, as described in E above.
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SEC. 306. APPLICABILITY OF FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT REQUIRBMENTS AND LIMITATION ON
LIABILITY. , -

(8) APPLICABILITY FOLLOWING THIS ACT. ~-Beginning on the date of enactment of this Act, section 7 of the
Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 U.S.C. 207) shall apply to a covered employee noththstandmg section

13(b)(1) of that Act (29 U.S.C. 213(b)(1)).
(b) LIABILITY LIMITATION FOLLOWING SAFETEA-LU.—

(1) LIMITATION ON LIABILITY.--An employer shall not be liable for a violation of section 7 of the Fair Labor
Standards Act of 1938 (29 U.S.C. 207) with respect to a covered employee if--

(A) the violation occurred in the 1-year period beginming on August 10, 2005; and

(B) as of the date of the violation, the employer did not have actual knowledge that the employer was subject
to the requirements of such section with respect to the covered employze, '

(2) ACTIONS TO RECOVER AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY PAID.--Nothing in paragraph (1) shall be construed fo
establish a cause of action for an employer to recover amounts paid before the date of enactment of this Act in set-
tiement of, in compromise of, or pursuant to a judgment rendered regarding a claim or potential claim based on an

alleged or proven violation of section 7 of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 U.S.C. 207) occurring in the 1- :

year period referred to in paragraph ( 1)(A) with respect to a covered employee. .
(c) COVERED EMPLOYEE DEF]NED.—-In this section, the term "covered employee" means an individual—- ¢

(1) who is employed by a motor carrier or motor private carrier (as such terms are defined by sectxon 13102 of title -
49, United States Code, as amended by section 305);

(2) whose work, in whole or in part, is defined--
(A) as that of a driver, driver's helper, loader, or mechanic; and

(B) as affecting the safety of operation of motor vehicles wexghmg 10,000 pounds or less in transportation on pub-
lic hxghways in interstate or forelgn commerce, except vehicles—

'§)] designed or used to transport more than 8 passengers (including the driver) for compensation;

(ii) designed or used to transport more than 15 passengers (including the dnver) and not used to transport passen-
gers for compensation; or

(iu) used in transporting material found by the Secretarj of Transportahon to be hazardous under section 5103 of

Secretary under secuon 5103 of title 49 United States Codc and

(3) who performs duties on motor vehicles weighing 10,000 pounds or less.
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